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CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

130 Gillespie Street
Fayetteville, NC 28301
(910) 678-7602

MINUTES
NOVEMBER 19, 2009
7:00 P.M.

Members Present Absent Members Staff/Others Present
George Quigley, Chair Harvey Raynor, (Butch)
John R. Swanson, Vice Chair County Attorney
Oscar L. Davis, 111 Patricia Speicher
Melree Hubbard Tart Jeff Barnhill
Joseph M. Dykes Pier Varner
Carrie Tyson-Autry Angela Davis

Marili Melchionne

Chair Quigley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in Public Hearing Room # 3 of the
Historic Courthouse.

1.

ROLL CALL

Mrs. Varner called the roll and stated a quorum was present.
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA

There were no adjustments to the agenda.

APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 15, 2009 MINUTES

A motion was made by Mr. Dykes and seconded by Mr. Swanson approving the
minutes as written. The motion passed unanimously.

APPROVAL OF THE 2010 DEADLINE/MEETING SCHEDULE

A motion was made by Ms. Tart and seconded by Mr. Swanson approving the 2010
deadline/meeting schedule. The motion passed unanimously.

ABSTENTIONS BY BOARD MEMBERS

There were no abstentions by Board Members.
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6. PUBLIC HEARING DEFERRALS
There were no deferrals.
7.  BOARD MEMBER DISCLOSURE
There were no Board Member disclosures.
8. POLICY STATEMENTS REGARDING APPEAL PROCESS READ
Mrs. Varner read the Board’s policy regarding the appeal process to the audience.
9.  PUBLIC HEARING
Opened Public Hearing

e P09-09-C: CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST FOR A VARIANCE FROM THE
COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, SECTION 927, SUB-SECTION C.1, TO ALLOW
YARD SETBACKS OF UP TO 33 FEET WHERE 220 FEET IS REQUIRED FOR A 220
FOOT TOWER, AND A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A TOWER IN A RR RURAL
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT ON A .36+/- ACRE PORTION OF A 97.77+/- ACRE TRACT:;
LOCATED AT 1511 LAKE UPCHURCH DRIVE; SUBMITTED BY THOMAS H.
JOHNSON, JR., NEXSEN PRUET, PLLC ON BEHALF OF AMERICAN TOWERS, INC.;
OWNED BY H.D. BOWEN, JR.

MRS. VARNER: Mrs. Varner presented the zoning, land use, and photos of the
tower site to the Board. She also presented a map showing the corridor for the
Fayetteville Outer Loop crossing the parent tract.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Asked the board members if they had any questions for staff.

MRS. VARNER: Mrs. Varner indicated she had additional information. The
frontage and location for the parent tract is 880°, but for the tower site is 125°. The
current use on the tower site is vacant land. Water and sewer availability are well and
septic for the parent tract. There are some conditions that should be paid particular
attention which are numbers 1 and 2.

Information for the Highway Plan, Fayetteville Outer Loop is identified in the
Highway Plan as a major thoroughfare. This proposal calls for a multi-lane facility
U-2519 with a right-of-way of 250°. Road improvements are included in the 2009-
2015 MTIP. This property will be directly impacted by the Fayetteville Outer Loop
located inside the 1000° corridor.

The applicant is requesting a variance from the Cumberland County Zoning
Ordinance, Section 927 for the tower, sub-section C, setbacks. In residential and
agricultural zones a tower less than 300" in height must be set back from all adjacent
property lines and/or lease lines a distance not less than the height of the tower.
Tower provisions adopted January 23, 1996. Any questions are welcome.
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CHAIR QUIGLEY: Asked the board members if they had any questions for staff.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Asked Mrs. Varner to please pull up the slide of the site
plan, before the first photograph of the notification sign that had blue letters.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: The green line is the corridor for the right-of-way.

MR. DAVIS: Why would they not get the variance from DOT first?

MRS. VARNER: He would have to go through the variance first in order to get the
permit for the location of the tower. The variance with the DOT is something that he
will have to deal with afterwards. He is planning to put the tower site in the
Jjurisdiction of Cumberland County, so it doesn’t make sense to go first with the DOT
variance if they won’t get the variance approved by Cumberland County.

MR. DAVIS: It works the other way too.

MS. SPEICHER: IfI could explain. That came up kind of late in the game about the
actual corridor. We were going along with the applicant with the state right-of-way.
It was quite late in the process when the need for a DOT variance was discovered and
notice had already been given for this case, so we continued on with it. We did make
the applicant aware.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Can you go back? In this drawing it looks like the
proposed right-of-way for the outer loop is to the west. If this schematic was properly
oriented to the north, it looks like the Outer Loop would be to the west. Can you go
one — I'm sorry, go back to the first one with the blue letters.

Here it is to the east. Is there something wrong with the site plan as it is drawn?
Because it seems to be — if we look at that one, that green line where the mouse is, it
is on the east side, now go back one. Even though we have turned the schematic, now
that right-of-way is on the west side. Can you go back one more? Go back two more.

MS. SPEICHER: We have it on the west or the north west side.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Maybe I'm looking at the wrong one, or am I the only
one? That one that is on the west side, go back one more. That is the only one that
shows it on the east, I think.

MS. SPEICHER: You are looking at the corridor line as opposed to the right-of-way
line. The site plans are showing the actual right-of-way line.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: I got you, go back to the one with the blue letters, I
understand.

MS. SPEICHER: They both have that notch in them, if the notch is what is causing
confusion.
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VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Let’s go back one more, I understand.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Any other questions for staff? We do have some persons who
are signed up to speak in favor of the request for variance, and everyone will be
heard. Do we have Mr. Graham Herring? Mr. Herring, will you come forward to the
podium?

MR. JOHNSON: IfI may, Mr. Chairman, [ am Tom Johnson, I am signed up there
too. He is one of the witnesses that is working with me in terms of an expert. [ am
actually the one who turned in the application so it may be better if we take it in the
order that I make the presentation, then I will call Mr. Herring up to explain.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: What is your name, sir?

MR. JOHNSON: Tom Johnson.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Okay Mr. Johnson — Mr. Herring, we will defer to you. Mr.
Johnson, would you raise your right hand and place your left hand on the bible,
please? (Mr. Johnson was sworn in.)

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Please state your name and address for the record.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, sir. My name is Thomas H. Johnson, Jr., [ am an
attorney with the firm of Nexsen/Pruet, PLLC. My address is 201 Shannon Oaks
Circle, Suite 100, Cary, North Carolina, 27511.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you very much. Would you go ahead and make your
statement, and it is subject to questions from the Board.

MR. JOHNSON: Absolutely, and I will be glad to answer any questions at any time.
I appreciate the opportunity, Mr. Chairman, to be here. I will also clarify some of the
questions the Board had prior to me getting up here. I do have a power point
presentation if we can put it into the computer so that I can be able to show you some
other pictures. You are welcome to have the copy of it.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Yes, we would have to have a copy of it.

MR. JOHNSON: Absolutely, and that is no problem whatsoever. One thing I do
want to address up front, I do have a copy and I also have a signed copy, but I only
have one. This is the variance from DOT I have already applied for, and DOT in
Raleigh has given me, and here is the copy — has granted the variance. (See Exhibit

1)

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Circulate that as an exhibit.

MR. JOHNSON: IfI could have that in the record. I also would like to, before I
forget to move into evidence, all of our application and all the associated materials
that we submitted in connection with the application, I would like that admitted into
evidence in support of our application.
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VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Just for my own clarification, the pin number that is
identified in the letter from the North Carolina Department of Transportation, is that
for the parent parcel or is that for the site of the tower itself?

MR. JOHNSON: It is the site of the tower itself. I had to supply the site plan to DOT
along with my application that I submitted in writing. The issue was it is in the
corridor but it is not in the right-of-way. The difference is the corridor is set aside in
case the road may need to change, the right-of-way may need to be moved.

In this case the right-of-way has been set, so in that case DOT was not concerned
about where we were locating the tower because it is between those two lines and it is
not in the actual right-of-way that will be used. I can show you the right-of-way
lines. Mrs. Varner put up one map that she had, and you had our site plan. I can
show you how it goes so you can orient yourself.

MS. SPEICHER: Mr. Chair, could we make a clarification, the parcel number is for
the subject property as well as the parent tract, and I would just like to read it to
verify that we have the same number. He has 0403-02-9183.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: I am reading Pin number as 0403-12-0077.

MS. SPEICHER: I cannot explain the discrepancy.

MR. JOHNSON: I gave the parcel number for — all I have is a parent parcel, I did not
have one — there had not been one set aside for the tower site, so that is all we can use
is the parent parcel tax ID number. I do not know why DOT used that, but I gave
them the site plan and submitted the site plan because they had to have that in order to
rule on the variance.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: So that letter has nothing to do with this site?

MR. JOHNSON: No, it actually does, it is based on the site plan for this specific site.

MS. SPEICHER: IfI could, Chair, the parcel number on the application is 0403-02-
9183.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Two different pin numbers.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Two different pin numbers.

MR. JOHNSON: That must be an error by DOT, and I apologize for that, but they
had the specific site plan before them. The site plan is what they ruled on, the site
plan that I provided to you.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: If I could ask the staff to pull up the plat of the zoning
map. Where the red arrow is, just for my clarification, the pin number where the red
arrow is, is 0403-02-9183?
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MRS. VARNER: That is correct.

MS. SPEICHER: I think Pier just uncovered what the discrepancy may be. Mr.
Johnson, in the letter — or gave DOT, apparently the old parcel number which is
0403-12-0077. 1 believe they changed in 1998 or 1999 time frame.

MR. JOHNSON: But that is still showing on the website. If you pull up the Tax
Accessor’s office, they still have that reference.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Iam familiar with what she is talking about.

MR. JOHNSON: I apologize for the discrepancy on that, but they did review the site
plan, they would not have granted the variance without specifically reviewing the site
plan, and I provided it to them.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Okay, you can continue your presentation.

MR. JOHNSON: Like I said, DOT was fine with it because of the fact that they set
the right-of-way, and that is the right-of-way as is shown by the dotted line. If you
can see where you’ve got the subject property shown in blue to the — just above that
square, there is a line that goes across almost horizontal, but not quite. That line right
there, that is part of the right-of-way line where there will be an intersection with
Lake Upchurch Drive, so that is why it takes that movement instead of going straight
at that location. Then it comes back to the south, and if you will follow that line to
the south, that is the right-of-way. That is that corner that if you will pull up the other
map, I can show you where — see, that is that jog right here in this map, that is where
that is.

I know it is confusing because we are turning the site a little bit, but you can see it
easier from Lake Upchurch Drive if you turn it a little bit. I just wanted to explain
that. As far as the variance from DOT, that is the variance we need. If the board has
concerns or needs further clarification for any reason, I am glad to get that from DOT,
but DOT very clearly has no problem with this site.

The second thing I want to address is the setback, I do this a lot, and have done this
for many years as far as setting tower sites. Ordinances are worded almost exactly
like yours, some are a little different. I was not made aware this week that the way
this board maybe, or the county and staff has interpreted the ordinance is that the fall
zone does not go to the property lines of the parent parcel, but it goes to the property
lines of the leased parcel.

I guess by virtue of this — and I did not realize it until I got the agenda this week that
that was the interpretation, because you do mention in your ordinance the parent
parcel, and it says and/or. My interpretation, as it is done in other jurisdictions that
have similar language, is that it means or, and as long as we are setback from the
parent parcel, the adjacent property lines that distance, we are okay; it does not have
to be from the lease line.
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In that regard, Mr. Bowen is here with me who is the owner of the property. I have
spoken with him, and he is perfectly willing to grant an associated easement for the
fall zone on his property if we need to have that as a condition of whatever action you
may take here tonight. Because it was never our intention to create a variance
situation on any side other than the side like toward Lake Upchurch Drive which we
acknowledge that. If you will look at our application, that is what we speak to.

We try to minimize as is in the variance requirements to minimize any variance
request, and that is perfectly well our intention. Our intention would be to consider
the variance and the setback variance as being on the Lake Upchurch Drive side of
the project. I did want to clarify that up front. Again, I can have Mr. Bowen come up
here.

The reason it is irrelevant in this case, just so you are aware, and you may already be
aware and probably are. In your telecommunications ordinance it says that if we use
a monopole tower that structures can be located within the setback. So to Mr. Bowen
it is not a situation where it is of concern to him for that reason, because he can build
structures within that setback zone; he can still use his property within that setback
zone. Different than if you had a lattice tower or a guy-wire tower; your ordinance
treats those differently. That is my point in that regard to clarify that portion.

Now I would like to proceed as well to go forward on the variance. I will handle —
there is some overlap in the variance and the special use permit. I want to deal with
the variance first because that is the most important part to deciding what we do if the
board is in agreement with that, before deciding what we do on the special use permit.

Ms. Varner, if you could pull up my presentation. (See Exhibit 2 - DVD) You may
ask why we are here, | wanted to give a little background in terms of — and I know
you have heard other tower applications, but just to give you some figures that are as
most up-to-date that I have. The public is depending upon wireless and mobile
devices more and more for emergency use. Having the comfort to be able to pick up
their mobile phone and call 9-1-1. There are 300,000 calls a day to 9-1-1 using
mobile phones; that is across the country.

Fifty to seventy percent (50-70%) of those calls are from mobile phones, and 25% of
those are in doors on mobile phones; big difference. Because when you are indoors,
those walls block signal, so you need towers closer to the home in order to have
stronger signals so your phone works when you use it.

Eighty-seven percent (87%) of Americans have a mobile phone they take with them,
they have it with them all the time. More than 20% of the homes are wireless only;
that is they don’t have a land-line phone any more to pick up, so they have got to be
sure that their phone is going to get to 9-1-1 or whoever they may need to contact in
the event of an emergency.
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One-third rely on mobile phones even if they have a land-line. So you may have 20%
that are wireless only, but another one third will rely on those mobile phones even if
they have a land-line. In addition, wireless devices are depended upon by emergency
service providers. You may have EMS or fire, and I do not know if they are here, but
they may have laptops, they may have their own cell phones, they may have their
own wireless devices. More and more they are using those to communicate in the
event of an emergency.

I know that in Hurricane Floyd when I was involved in that in eastern North Carolina
that we were trying to keep the wireless lines up because the land lines were out.
That was the main land-line emergency service. Just giving you an idea of the
importance and why we are here to fill in for the tower.

This is the current situation regarding towers in the area. For existing towers, the one
in the middle that is in white and outlined, the 141-184, that is the current tower that
we are talking about here tonight in that location.

This is the proposed coverage of this site. So if you can see a little bit of how it
matches up with the other towers, and I am going to step you through this because I
am going to show you some other pictures that clarify it even more.

This is without the site, so you see the white, the white is gaps in coverage. The
orange is more a stronger coverage, the yellow is a little less strong, green is a little
less than that, then you have the blue that gets weaker and weaker. But here you see a
lot of white space, that is what we are trying to resolve; in this area.

This is how it matches up, and you can see how well it matches up with the adjacent
sites, it is like taking a piece of a puzzle and putting it in the middle of the hole; that
is the hole we are trying to fill right here. It becomes even more important, you know
we talk about [-295, the outer loop, it becomes even more important in that instance
as well because you have in the future traveling public who are going to use that
important artery in this area, and this tower will be available for the traveling public
to use and have access to.

Why are we having to do this now, you know wireless has been around a long time,
people have more phones, and as people have more sophisticated devices, then you
have to have more towers because there is a limited bandwidth or tunnel that those
devices can use, and it gets full, so you have to have another tower to take up for that
full space that is being taken up.

Here is the site plan, this is actually our survey, our site plan that we provided with
our application. As you can see, we meet the 220 feet on the parent parcel from every
location but across the road. The reason is specifically because of the right-of-way of
I-295 and the way this property is configured in this triangle. We could not move the
tower further back or we would get into the right-of-way. Now what we have done is
we have 101 feet to actually the right-of-way of Lake Upchurch Drive on the one side
toward those homes.
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None of those homes are in the 225 foot setback, but as your ordinance recognizes
they could be within that setback and it would not matter with a monopole.

Even if you take it a step further and you have a 60 foot right-of-way for Lake
Upchurch Drive, if we took that on, we are at 161 feet, so we are still pretty close to
the 220 notwithstanding that their homes are across the way there. But we are 220
feet from those homes, regardless. That is the radius, we were very careful about
that, and we were trying to minimize that impact.

On top of that, and I wanted to pass this out to the board, and I submitted this with the
application, but if the board can take a look at — Mr. Raynor, I have many copies. We
had an engineering firm take a look at the plans and give an opinion. If you want me
to wait a minute until you get that, I will. (See Exhibit 3) If you are ready for me to
go ahead, I'll proceed.

MS. SPEICHER: For the record, could we ask specifically what the document is?

MR. JOHNSON: I'll be glad to describe it. This is an opinion letter — do you want
me to describe it, or do you Mr. Chairman?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Does anybody need to have this document described to them
specifically?

MR. JOHNSON: I think Ms. Speicher wants it for the record, and I will be glad to —

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Yes, okay, do that, please.

MR. JOHNSON: It is a statement from DaVinci Engineering which is an engineering
firm who reviewed the plans and this document is sealed by a License North Carolina
engineer. Basically giving the opinion that this tower, it is 220 feet, if it were to fail,
the most radius that it would impact would be 78 feet from the base of the tower.
Because these towers are designed not only with winds in mind, because we can have
hurricanes, tropical storms, that come up this far, we all know that. So they are
designed with that in mind, but they are also designed for winds and ice. Because we
can have ice storms here with a lot of wind, and that creates more burden on the
tower.

These standards have gone up in recent years because of how much the public
depends on these towers for emergency services, so we have to build them to very
stringent standards. But this is a monopole tower sunk in the ground, and again, your
ordinance again recognizes the difference. If the winds are bad enough, and if it were
to fail and the weakness is — where the weak point is, it is just going to bend over. It
is probably not even going to bend all the way over. It is not going to shear at the
bottom and fall flat, because there is so much concrete in the ground to hold that
tower in, there are bolts at the base, it is not going to take up and fly away or anything
like that. It is just going to bend just like anything else would in the wind, and you
have seen that in many things, trees, telephone poles, whatever, they tend to bend
over rather than just fall flat. This is the engineering letter that shows that.
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So in any event where this is located, this is not going to affect any property outside
of Mr. Bowen'’s property, it is going to be in fact within the tower site itself.

I wanted to show some other examples too, if you could carry on, I have some other
pictures just to — again, this is just another view of the site plan similar to what you
have seen before. This is a more up-close view with a 70 x 70 foot compound and the
125 foot by 125 foot lease area for the site.

This is an elevation of the tower, 220 feet with room for extra users in the future so
you will not have to have duplicate towers.

Talking about how close it is to the right-of-way, and DOT is not worried about it.
DOT is not likely real worried about it because on interstate interchanges you have
these monopole lights — many of them. Here is an example of one, this is in the
Raleigh-Durham near the airport. You have got this monopole light station it is
smaller in terms of — less substantial than what we are putting in the ground, but it is
there right adjacent to the interstate.

Again, this is another one, this is even closer to the airport. This is actually on the
airport property. This shows — this is at the airport, go to the left, you are at the
Raleigh-Durham airport, and you can see numerous of these light towers at this
interchange. We are at an interchange here on the interstate, but you just see them
there; these are monopole towers. Ours will be a little bit taller than these, but not
substantially so. Just giving you an idea of how close these set next to well traveled
arteries. Here is another view, again showing those same towers at that interchange.

But it is not just light towers. This is in Wilmington, I had it from another hearing
that I did, but these are high voltage electrical transmission lines. The base of that
tower sits in somebody’s yard. This has high voltage lines on the top of it, this is not
antennas like we are talking about. Again, this is a very tall pole, very substantial
pole, not as substantial as what we are going to put in the ground, but it goes right
through a residential area.

This was just something I threw in here, I just thought you might be interested in it
because some questions had come up before about exposure on towers and things like
that; I thought it would be of interest. If you can see, police and mobile radio on the
left, that is the level of radio exposure, FM radio transmitter, less than half of that. A
cordless phone like in your house at a 15 level. A baby monitor, wireless baby
monitor for monitoring whether the baby is crying in the nursery is one. A WIFI
router that many of you have to have wireless computer service in your home is at
.13, acell site is at a .1, very, very, very low.

As part of the application process we submitted the documentation, and we will get to
that on the Special Use Permit. But I did want to show you this because I thought it
was a very good diagram that showed the differences in what we are talking about
here.
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I do want to kind of summarize on the variance, if [ may. I know you have a list of
conclusions you have to come up with on a variance request, and I want to go through
those step-by-step.

The first thing you have to do under your ordinance is: “There are extraordinary and
exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular piece of property in question
because of its size, shape or topography that are not applicable to other lands or
structures in the same district.” This site is different because of size and shape,
because, as you can see, of the right-of-way of 1-295 and Lake Upchurch Drive;
because of those two roads and how they intersect, it has created a property of a
distinct and unique size and shape that is not like any of the others in the district. The
second is that granting the variance —

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Can I ask a question?

MR. JOHNSON: Sure.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: But this is a proposed site, isn’t it?

MR. JOHNSON: It is a proposed site, absolutely.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Would it not be a reasonable interpretation that part of
the hardship that you are seeking to alleviate is caused by the site selection?

MR. JOHNSON: You may say that, but the particular piece of property, in order to
be able to have it useable for something which is property owner — have some
property, he wants to be able to use it. Because of its size and shape, it gives an
opportunity that — to use it for this with this size and shape for this use. It is only, as I
said, because of the health and safety issues, it’s not really going to have any impact
on anybody else. But because of the size and shape, yes, I know it is proposed,
absolutely; I cannot disagree with you on that. But we have minimized it and we
have set it back enough and we have the evidence to support the fact that it will not
impact anybody on that side of the road. Your ordinance itself recognizes that with a
monopole you can put structures within that setback.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: One of the things we have to consider is as I am
listening to you, is if there is extraordinary and exceptional conditions because of its
size, shape topography that sounds applicable to other lands. I frankly have kind of a
hard time reconciling a proposed site because it is not built, it is not a separate pin
number. So in trying to come to grips with duties and responsibilities of a board
member, how is that reconciled if you or your client pick the exact location?

MR. JOHNSON: Well, I understand.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Part of what you are explaining away is well only 79
feet are going to break off, it is not going to hit the house across the street, it is not
going to hit the 3,000 cars going up and down the road in the daily traffic count, I
understand your points.

Cumberland County Board of Adjustment Minutes: 11-19-09 Page 11 of 34



MR. JOHNSON: I will explain that, we did not self-create the site. The site was
created when DOT decided we are going to put I-295 in this location; we did not
create that. What we are dealing with a site, and as you saw earlier, for us to plug that
hole, this is optimum; it plugs that hole in many ways. It plugs it for those 3,000 cars
a day that may use [-295. It plugs the hole for these residents that are in this area. If
they want to pick up their phone and they want to get 9-1-1. We did not create the
shape of the site. The shape of the site was created when DOT said we are going to
put the outer here at Lake Upchurch Drive. That is not the thing we created. Yes we
are putting the tower there, but we are also setting it back enough so that we can meet
on all sides but one, and we are very close to meeting it on that one side.

MS. TART: Is that the original tract?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, ma’am.

MS. TART: Not the proposed tract — the original acreage?

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, ma’am.

MS. TART: Why was this particular spot chosen out of that acreage?

MR. JOHNSON: It was chosen in order to meet the requirements in terms of
optimally meet how that hole would be plugged. Because when we go and look, we
look at that, and we adjusted a little bit — just keeping in mind that you have a site
here that is useable for very few things. A tower is one thing that can go there and
help the neighborhood, and at the same time, as I said, plug the hole that we have.
DOT has no problem with it being there. In terms of the parcel number, that will be
changed once I guess we get through subdivision review, or whatever, but we would
get it assigned a parcel number, we just cannot at this time, unless we have a Special
Use Permit, we cannot get a separate parcel number. Are there any questions?

I was just going to proceed through the conditions. Granting the variance will not
confer upon the applicant any special privileges that are denied to other residents in
the district where the property is located. Again, this is a unique shape of property so
there are not others that have a property at the intersection of Lake Upchurch Drive
and 1-295. The literal — application would deprive the applicant of rights commonly
enjoyed by other residents of the district in which it is located. Again, because of the
shape of this site it would deny us an opportunity to put a tower or deny the property
owner the right to put a tower on this site.

The requested variance will be in harmony with the purpose and the intent of this
Ordinance, and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or to the general welfare.

My points from that are:

1. Your ordinance recognizes harmony by allowing towers in the RR district by
Special Use Permit.
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2. It is in harmony by virtue of your ordinance recognizing that the monopole towers
you can build structures within the setback. That is obviously what you
considered when you had your ordinance — that it was appropriate to be able to
build structures within that setback.

3. The third thing in terms of not injurious to the neighborhood or the general
welfare, I would go back to the engineering letter that said that this will fall — if it
were, it would bend at 78 feet and stay within the tower site. Special
circumstances are not the result of the actions of the applicant.

As I said earlier, we did not make the shape of this parcel, it was made because of the
DOT’s decision to put in [-295; that was not our doing. The variance is a minimum
that will make possible the legal use of the land, building or structure. It is; it is just
on the one side, and we shifted it back as far as we could so that we only had it on
that one side, and again, we are offering up the easement by Mr. Bowen that will take
care of any concerns about that not being included as part of the lease area.

In the existence of a nonconforming use of neighboring land, buildings or structures
in the same district or of permitted or nonconforming uses in other districts does not
constitute a reason for approval of the requested variance. We are not dealing with
nonconforming uses here at all. In granting a variance, the Board may attach any
conditions that you want to, which again, if you wanted to attach as a condition that
we get that easement from Mr. Bowen, that is fine, we have no objection to that.

Then you also state any other exceptional difficulty or hardship, and I would ask
because of the configuration of this property as a result of I-295 that you find that as a
hardship that has been created, not by Mr. Bowen, not by American Tower, but by
DOT'’s actions in locating [-295.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Isn’t it true that even if there was no right-of-way you
would still need a variance?

MR. JOHNSON: With the right-of-way where you could adjust that backwards. If
you will see, the site is limited when you get to the right-of-way, we don’t have very
much room. We could go back into the right-of-way right there and still be on Mr.
Bowen'’s property, see how it slants?

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Let’s take 295, the outer corridor out of the equation.

MR. JOHNSON: Okay.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: If there is not a corridor, you would still need a variance.

MR. JOHNSON: No, because we could go back where the right-of-way is. If there
was no right-of-way, we could move back on Mr. Bowen’s property further back.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Can’t you also move to the south?
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MR. JOHNSON: Well, I really cannot if you move to the south — I guess — north is
actually — you will see true north on the left hand side there, if we moved to the south
we are getting into the right-of-way of 1-295.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: The schematic that you are looking at, true north is
pointed towards the bottom right hand corner of the schematic.

MR. JOHNSON: Right.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: So if the site plan, if that moved parallel to the left along
Lake Upchurch Drive, then it would —

MR. JOHNSON: I thought you were talking — you said south, and if you move south
you are moving into the right-of-way.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Well — okay, or west southwest — southeast. My
question is, is that an option, moving it to the southeast?

MR. JOHNSON: I do not know, other than the right-of-way, which we have to really
be careful of, let me speak to Mr. Bowen if [ may. It would help us somewhat on
this, and I have a question of staff, and maybe Mr. Raynor can help clarify this as
well. When you can put structures within that setback, which your ordinance allows,
can you put lot lines within that associated with those structures?

MS. SPEICHER: This staff cannot approve a subdivision of that tower site without a
variance.

MR. JOHNSON: That is some of what we run into because of — you can build in it,
which the ordinance allows us to build in that setback, but if you move it then we’re
having some problems in terms of being able to put lot lines with it. That is the
hardship that is created, not by us but by the interpretation of the ordinance. It puts us
in a real tough position, and Mr. Bowen in a tough position.

I do not know if you can grant a variance for lot lines, that is fine as well, we might —
that is another variance as opposed to the variance we are doing here. I do not know
that you could do it for lot lines, quite honestly, because that is a subdivision
ordinance issue. | have not read the subdivision ordinance to see what it says about —
in that setback, I did not see it in the tower ordinance. Ms. Speicher is there a
separate provision in the subdivision ordinance that says you can’t subdivide within
the setback if you can build in it?

MS. SPEICHER: The reference to building within the setback is taken into
consideration building on your own site. So if you do a subdivision it would have to
meet and be able to provide the setbacks from whatever structure was located on the
site that you were subdividing. The lot would have to be big enough to support the
setbacks.
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MR. JOHNSON: I read that ordinance, you can read Section D, it does not say
whether it is the property owner or somebody else, it just says you can put structures
within the setback. That is what the ordinance says, I understand staff’s
interpretation, I understand and appreciate that; I am not disputing that at all, I am just
saying that I did not read that in the ordinance. If you want to look at 927 D, it just
says structures located near towers shall not encroach upon the setbacks unless such
towers are of monopole design and construction, in which case buildings and
structures may be located within the setback distances.

That is not unusual, I know that [ am speaking not of this ordinance but of other
ordinances. But other ordinances allow residential structures to be pretty close to
these monopoles and will allow you to subdivide it. The theory being, once a tower is
up, you know it is there, and if you choose to buy a lot within that tower setback, you
know that tower is there, and any third party buyer knows it is there and sees what
they are buying and understands all of that. That is the whole purpose of — and that is
kind of related to allowing these structures.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Do you have any information from NCDOT as to when
this portion of the Outer Loop would begin? In other words, when the MTIPs would
begin and it appears that there are several residential homes that will be —

MR. JOHNSON: That will have to be done. I do not know when the right-of-way
acquisition is. I know that when I looked at the MTIP it was way out in terms of
when this will be built. I think it is pretty far out, I do not know if staff knows from
FAMPO where it is on the MTIP.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: I[s it a matter of years, two years, three years?

MR. JOHNSON: I think it is ten plus years, it is a long time. That is why those
homes and all are still there, the right-of-way acquisition has not even started, and it
will be a process. Because of the quick take provisions that DOT has, they can go in
and take that property fairly quickly, so they are not going to spend the money right
now until it gets closer to when it is going to be built.

MRS. VARNER: Mr. Swanson, excuse me, according to FAMPO the road
improvements are included in the 2009-2015 MTIP, between those years.

MR. JOHNSON: Is that for right-of-way acquisition, or construction? I cannot
imagine that it is for construction.

MRS. VARNER: It says road improvements, those were the comments that we
received from FAMPO.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Based on your tower coverage, would it be a reasonable
interpretation of the graphics of that, that right now the principal means of emergency
communication is by radio or law enforcement first responders in that area?
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MR. JOHNSON: Typically what you find for first responders, and I have talked with
folks even in this area because we have another tower we are doing in Fayetteville,
and I was just talking with them, they would use radio. The police and fire use radio,
but they also use associated devices that are wireless. [ know from personal
experience in Dare County for instance, and I have helped build that system out, Dare
County law enforcement uses cell phones, and they start complaining to the carriers,
oh we do not have service, and we have had to improve service for them in Dare
County.

If you will see the officers they will have their radio, but they will have their cell
phone on their hip too, and that is — then I also have — I do not know if EMS is using
it, but the wireless computers that you can use and use the same radio waves to do
that. That is not part of the radio system, and they do that sometimes just to get better
service so they can have computer service, because that mobile radio does not allow
for computer service, it is just radio.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: One of the benefits, if [ am hearing you right, would be
that, I will state it in the negative, without the tower, that first responders must rely in
this particular area, based on the lack of tower coverage that you have portrayed, on
FM radio communication. Based on the numbers that you showed, the usage, most of
the people here in this residence, businesses in the area, emergency services would
have to rely on wired phones.

MR. JOHNSON: If they had a wired phone.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: If they had a wired phone.

MR. JOHNSON: They may, I will not say that people within that white space may
never get a signal. I know in my building I do not have a signal sometimes, but
sometimes I do, in my office building. It is one of those things, we are trying to
provide reliable service. Reliable so that when you pick up that phone, when that
person in that home picks up that phone, they know that they have 9-1-1 on the other
end.

How about — you go through the list, Columbine, and everybody in school and the
kids got their phones and they are calling, any of those number of situations people
are calling on mobile phones, things have changed.

The other thing, Mr. Yates, [ was going to mention that and you reminded me, we are
actually proposing for two carriers on here too, so it is not just AT&T, it is AT&T
and T-Mobile on this one tower. So that if somebody has T-Mobile service, they
have it, they have AT&T. AT&T is also, and you may have seen it in the press or
whatever, rolling out the 3G service which allows more effective use of your I-
Phones and the Smart Phones, that service is already available in Fayetteville, this is
part of upgrading that service as well.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Does anyone else have any other questions for Mr. Johnson?
Did you have anything else to speak — you can come back at another —
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MR. JOHNSON: I will come back in rebuttal if I need to, but that is really the
primary presentation I have right now.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you very much, I remind you that you do remain under
oath.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you very much.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: We are now calling Mr. Herring. Mr. Herring was sworn in and
asked to state his name and address for the record.

MR. HERRING: I would be glad to Mr. Chairman, members of the Board. My name
is Graham Herring, 8052 Grey Oak Drive, Raleigh, NC 27615. IfI may, I would like
to hand up this documentation. (See Exhibit 4)

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you.

MR. HERRING: I appeared before you gentlemen and ladies just a few months ago.
I was employed to go out and evaluate this site in relationship to its proximity to the
surrounding improved properties and unimproved properties, for that matter, with the
intent in mind to see if there is any potential emanation of value, adverse impact on
current development that exists in the area, any potential future development based on
the long-term plan for Cumberland County and the anticipated growth within this
area.

Without getting too involved and elaborating on the documentation that you have
there, the bottom line is that it is my interpretation, based on my experience in talking
with area developers, appraisers, and this type tower in thousands of other locations
within North Carolina and the Eastern Seaboard that I have evaluated is well placed
and would create no adverse impact or emanation of value on the surrounding
properties.

MR. JOHNSON: I do want Mr. Herring to clarify one thing when he talks about
setbacks, if there is a variance granted, will it change your opinion?

MR. HERRING: None whatsoever. In particular, because of the proximity to the
natural barriers that exist on the road, Lake Upchurch Drive itself, the planned
improvements of the highway and the fact that the fail point and the engineering of
the signal tower, even though I'm not a structural engineer, are designed so that it
would not have a catastrophic failure within the bounds of the compound itself in this
area.

Developers in Cumberland County specifically also, but throughout the state, and
other states are in residential developments or recreational golf course type
developments have planned for towers to service or exist.
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We have tracked sales and resale of properties, both residential, commercial, and
industrial before and after the building towers and in developed areas that actually
develop around existing towers; vertical structures, not only cell towers, but vertical
structures, radio, television, water towers here in Cumberland County, things of that
nature. There are just no adverse impact typically associated with it. Thank you.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Does anyone have any questions for Mr. Herring?

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Have any of your studies indicated that towers of this
type change the demographics of the neighborhood as they existed before the tower
was erected; to the best of your knowledge? In other words, would the area, if it was
predominantly owner occupied, would it suddenly very rapidly change to rental
income?

MR. HERRING: Absolutely not, there is just natural progression of development in
that regard. We have experienced enhancement with economic development people
requesting that a specific industrial or commercial area be provided this service as far
as a penetration or capacity, and have requested to be able to supply communications.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: To the best of your knowledge, do these towers — is
there any sort of economic growth associated with their emplacement?

MR. HERRING: That is, in a round-about way, what [ was speaking to that we have
seen specific industries that relied on communications, service industries, things of
that nature that requested before, actually by, let’s say an industrial tract and
developing it in the case of Fayetteville, in Cumberland County out by the tire plant
and things of that nature needing communications as an enhancement. Thank you
very much.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you. Mr. Jason Grossclose?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Mr. Johnson, you are —

MR. JOHNSON: Jason is not going to speak but one of our folks who came in late —I
would like to have Dave Lacava speak, and he was supposed to have already signed
up, and I apologize for that. He is the one who — he is with AT&T who helped
develop the plots that I showed you, and I would like him to just be able to clarify
that since he is an engineer.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Mr. Lacava was sworn in and asked to state his name and
address for the record.

MR. LACAVA: My name is David Lacava, my address is 1130 Situs Court, Suite
100, Raleigh, North Carolina, 27606.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you very much, and what is your statement?
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MR. LACAVA: [ would just like to support what Mr. Johnson has already presented
to the Board. I am the RF engineer who approved the location of this site and also
took part in the technical design and features that the facility offers. I just want to
make a short statement that supports what Mr. Johnson said, that the current location
that we’ve proposed maximizes the effectiveness of the facility. It also maximizes
the effectiveness of this site in relation to the other six sites that surround this
proposed facility; so that the proposed site will work in a proper manner with the
other sites that are surrounding the facility that we’re proposing. This site is also
optimal for our competitor, T-Mobile as well, and that’s basically my statement.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Does any member of the Board have any questions for Mr.
Lacava? Everybody understands what he was saying?

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Absolutely, I can hear him now.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Okay, Mr. Lacava, thank you very much.

MR. LACAVA: Thank you.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: We do have Mr. Jason Grossclose, does he have any
information that would differ from anything that we have already heard?

MR. JOHNSON: No. he does not.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Does he wish to present anyway?

MR. JOHNSON: No. he does not.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: We do have some people who are signed to speak in opposition
to this, and I just wanted to say that there will be ample time provided for anyone who
wants to speak in rebuttal to anything that is presented. First name I have is Mr.
Mazor, would you please come to the podium? Mr. Mazor was sworn in and asked to
state his name and address for the record.

MR. MAZOR: Yes, sir, my name is John Mazor, my address is 2957 Farms Drive,
Charleston, South Carolina, 29492. We are here in opposition of you all granting a
variance. In a few weeks we will be submitting for a site down the road off of Black
Ridge Road on a 25 acre parcel. Our proposed tower will be sitting about 600 feet off
the road. We will not be asking for a variance, there are not any houses — we meet all
the criteria of the county.

My biggest question is why American Towers is taking their tower and cramming it

up against the road right across the street from all those houses when it is obvious that
Mr. Bowen has 100 plus acres. These sites are not site-specific.
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That site will work on any parcel, it would work in this parcel. It would work in this
corner as you suggested, if it was down south, it would work back here, it would
work on this parcel, that parcel, that parcel, that parcel. A variance — a typical
variance is for hardship, I do not see where their hardship is. We were able to secure
a site. We meet all the criteria, we are not asking for a variance and we just formally
ask that the Board to deny them — obviously there is not a hardship, there is plenty of
rural land out there for them to meet all their setbacks.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Where exactly is the property that you are developing out there?
[s it visible on this particular sketch?

MR. MAZOR: This is Clifford Parker, he is the owner of the property. This property
right in the corner is back off the road like you said.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you.

MR. MAZOR: Does anybody else have any other questions?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Do you have any questions for Mr. Mazor?

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: I do, just for clarification, has the tower been built, is
that what you are saying?

MR. MAZOR: No, sir. We are fixing to submit for application within the next two
weeks. The Planning Commission has asked us to delay a little bit just to wait to see
the outcome of this tower. But [ wanted to let you know there is another opportunity
and that we don’t need a variance for our setbacks.

MR. DAVIS: Is that why you are already building?

MR. MAZOR: Excuse me, sir?

MR. DAVIS: Have you already started building?

MR. MAZOR: No, sir, we are in the beginning stage, we are waiting to hear the
outcome of this. If this goes unfavorably or favorably toward us, then we are going to
proceed and submit for our application within the next week or two.

MR. DAVIS: Who is us, who is we?

MR. MAZOR: I am sorry, it is Sequoia Wireless. We are a little smaller than
American Tower.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: The height of the tower that you propose?
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MR. MAZOR: We are proposing 160 feet, it would basically be almost 40 feet less
than the height of their tower.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Mr. Raynor, did you have any comment?

MR. RAYNOR: I just wonder what type of tower it would be.

MR. MAZOR: It would be monopole, it would be very similar to what they are
building.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Any other questions from any other Board Member? Okay, Mr.
Mazor, thank you very much. I remind you that should you wish to come back, you
remain under oath.

MR. MAZOR: Yes, sir.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Mr. Parker, did you want to introduce any information? (Mr.
Parker was sworn in and asked to state his name and address for the record.)

MR. PARKER: My name is Clifford Parker, 4841 Blacks Bridge Road, Parkton,
North Carolina; I am in Cumberland County, and I do live right there in that area. T-
Mobile approached me last year about this time for the tower. The tower was delayed
because they had personnel conflict at T-Mobile. I waited for about six weeks for T-
Mobile to approach me, and they didn’t. Mr. Mazor from Sequoia had me sign the
contract and since then have been working on trying to get his tower in, and the
people from American Tower approached me back in July or August, and they said
mine was the primary site for the tower that they wished to put in, but they could not
get around this contract with Sequoia. Those are my comments.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Does anyone have any questions for Mr. Parker?

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Like the applicant, in other words, the only thing that
you would require would be a special use permit?

MR. PARKER: That is all.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Any questions? All right, thank you very much Mr. Parker, I
remind you that you remain under oath. Mr. Johnson?

MR. JOHNSON: I would like to address — first of all, I do question their standing to
say anything because they are not adjacent property owners, and that is typically, if
you will look at the rule of law, it is somebody who has standing that would be
affected by the tower. Second time I have had this happen where somebody who says
we have another site for you down the road and we would rather have the money than
Mr. Bowen have the money. I had this happen to me in New Hanover County last
week. That is not a justifiable reason to turn this site down.
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Now, on this site — and the other thing is neither one of these gentlemen mentioned
they were RF engineers. I had Mr. Lacava here, who is an engineer, he is a certified
engineer who looked at this site and decided that it was the best site as well as T-
Mobile.

Here you have two carriers who have been able to join-up and match optimally at this
site at 220 feet, that is very, very unusual. In all my time, I have usually dealt with
one carrier, this is where two have come together — where they are matching their
systems which are different. They may be on different towers, they may be in
different locations, they are matching up and this is optimal for them, and this is the
site that works for them as Mr. Lacava said and testified.

The search ring for this site, and I can get Mr. Lacava up to verify this, is three tenths
of a mile for AT&T. You are going to get outside that if you are going to where this
other gentlemen’s property is, that is the area where they wanted that tower. I also
did not hear Mr. Mazor or the other gentleman mention that they had anyone who was
a tenant on that tower, and they do not have their permits or anything in place, so
certainly that — they are not ready to build that site, have not submitted an application.
I would know of no reason why they could not have gone and submitted an
application if they had wanted to; we certainly did not say they could not do that. But
in our situation we have two tenants both of which says it optimally fits their needs,
they are ready to go. We have an RF Engineer, not lay people, somebody who is an
actual engineer saying this site is optimal, this is where we need to be in order to
provide the best service for the residents of this area matching up six towers.

If you think about that, you have six towers that AT&T is matching up, however
many more, probably six more that T-Mobile has, that is a pretty big jigsaw puzzle to
fit together. It is not like you have two towers and you are moving one way or the
other to fit between two, you are talking six. You are trying to fit that gap that exists.

In terms of the variance, if I point out again, it is not our fault that we are coming in
here — or Mr. Bowen’s fault that we are having to come in here for the variance.
There are two very important things that he has nothing to do with that are outside his
control. Number 1 is DOT and where they decided to put I-295. Now he could go
testify at the Public Hearing, but they decided they were going to put it there; that is
out of his control and that drastically impacts this property.

The second thing is he cannot subdivide it. According to what staff said we cannot
have lot lines in there even though you can build structures, again, that is not of his
doing, that is something beyond his control. So it really limits his ability to do
anything with this parcel and to be able to move it back. It is very uniquely shaped,
outside his responsibility, nothing that he did. Again, it is optimal for these others to
provide for the emergency services and welfare for the individuals in this area.
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I would ask you to consider that, or ask you to please grant the variance, there is not a
health and safety issue, we have the engineering to show it, that the tower is going to
remain on site. We are very close to meeting the setbacks on every side. If you
include the road right-of-way, it is 160 feet even on the site we are requesting a
variance on. Much — very, very close within 60 feet of that, there are no structures
currently existing within that, but you allow structures in the setbacks, so that really
takes that away.

I would just ask you to consider granting the variance for the welfare of the people in
this area. After working through it and Mr. Bowen hearing what is going on here
tonight. Thinking through the process with Mr. Grossclose, he’s with American
Tower, we will move it so that — Mr. Bowen has agreed to move it back enough, kind
of southwest or whatever it may be to get back far enough so that we are outside the
right-of-way of [-295; we already have the variance. [ would probably have to
modify that variance letter, but I had no trouble getting DOT to agree to the variance,
and I will agree to modify that, if we move the site, we will probably need to do that.
But we are staying outside the right-of-way anyway, that is set; and move it back
enough — I am not a surveyor or an engineer, but we can move it back far enough so
that at least —

Now I do have a question of staff. The adjacent property line that you would
consider, is it the road right-of-way on Mr. Bowen’s side, or is it the road right-of-
way on the opposite side?

MS. SPEICHER: Any change in the site plan that is submitted would have to be re-
staffed.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Understand.

MR. JOHNSON: We understand that, but I am just asking for our setback purposes,
can we go to the opposite side of the 60 foot right-of-way on Lake Upchurch Drive,
or do we have to stay on the — Mr. Bowen’s side of the right-of-way of Lake
Upchurch Drive measuring the 220 feet?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: I am asking that question to staff, thank you, do you have an
answer?

MS. SPEICHER: The way we measure the setbacks are property lines or lease lines,
so whichever it is going to be, then I suspect we will be back here in a month or two
months. Without the full staff looking at it, one staff member cannot give an opinion.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: I understand. Staff cannot respond specifically to your question
at this time, but what they are asking is that you would re-submit so that the full
planning staff can consider your request.
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MR. JOHNSON: Can I ask this, and if I may, Mr. Raynor, maybe you can weigh in
on this; is it possible for us to just to continue it and make that change? It is really not
a large modification. We will get it in as soon as we can so that we can at least get
back on your December agenda, and we will re-advertise it with the right description
and everything.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Mr. Chairman, can I ask a question?

MS. SPEICHER: Excuse me, there is no possible way. We are currently working on
January 2010 cases, and if the site is moved, we do have to re-advertise it, and we do
not have time to do that.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: It would appear that that is not feasible to do that in December,
it would have to be re-advertised in sufficient time to satisfy requirements.

MR. JOHNSON: Could we just continue —

MR. RAYNOR: It could be continued.

MR. JOHNSON: We could just continue it and modify it.

MS. SPEICHER: It could be continued — but the legal description that was advertised
is the .36 acre tract.

MR. JOHNSON: We will fix that.

MR. RAYNOR: It would have to be re-advertised, but we could continue.

MS. SPEICHER: It would also take an additional fee, and a new application.

MR. JOHNSON: The advertising, what is it, ten day advertising; ten days prior?

MS. SPEICHER: Ten to 25 days.

MR. JOHNSON: Minimum of ten but —

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Mr. Swanson does have one question, let’s let him ask that
question.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Is the purpose of the continuance and the movement of
this to kind of mitigate the need for the variance?

MR. JOHNSON: That is it.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: So you would not have a request for a variance?
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MR. JOHNSON: We would not really have a request for a variance, it would be the
special use permit only.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Then can I ask a question of Mr. Raynor? If that was
the case, the applicant was waiving his — if the application for a variance is being
waived based on a proposed site plan, that still requires advertisement?

MR. DAVIS: We would have to have the new site plan.

MR. RAYNOR: We would have to know what we are working with.

MS. SPEICHER: It would also have to show —

MR. DAVIS: We do not know where that site plan is and neither does the public.

MS. SPEICHER: In our mailed notices and everything under Cumberland County
Commissioners’ policy where we do the radius, it all shifts, so it could be —

MR. DAVIS: So what do we have now, do we have a withdrawal of the variance and
a continuation of the special use permit; is that what we have?

MR. JOHNSON: Right.

MS. SPEICHER: We certainly —

MR. JOHNSON: That is where we are, and we would like to continue it. We can get
the property description to you as quickly as possible, and it really should not impact
anything. Just to verify that we've gone back far enough, we will change the
description, we will include the setback area because I understand that was a staff
concern; we will include that in the description.

MS. SPEICHER: 1 would really like to ask the Board to consider because of
holidays, staff’s pre-scheduled vacation times, and just a very short time period, and
especially knowing that staff is working on January 2010 cases right now already, and
have been since November 6™.

MR. JOHNSON: I am not trying to put staff at a disadvantage, I am not, honestly I
am not, I understand that. Our pressure is to work with you, which we are doing by
taking out the variance, and to get this done for our benefit as quickly as we can — as
reasonably can be possible, not — I do not want to again hurt staff’s ability to review
it, that is not our intention.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: If I could ask a question of the staff, would it be — and
possibly Mr. Raynor, would it be improper to conditionally grant a special use permit
subject to the revised site plan, not requiring a variance?
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MS. SPEICHER: You certainly could, you would have that option. With the staff
approval of the site plan meeting the setbacks, yes, sir.

MR. JOHNSON: If you could do that, that would be great and we will go ahead with
the hearing tonight.

MS. SPEICHER: Well —

MR. JOHNSON: We will agree to that, and if you want to put a date on it —

MS. SPEICHER: I am sorry, we cannot do that because we cannot move the tower
without re-notifying. We cannot move the subject property without re-notifying.

MR. DAVIS: It is got to be advertised.

MS. SPEICHER: Right.

MR. DAVIS: Because the public has to know what the change was.

MS. SPEICHER: Right.

MR. JOHNSON: But it is in the same tax parcel, would that make a difference? We
are not moving tax parcels.

MS. SPEICHER: Only the .36 acres was submitted for the special use, that is what
was advertised, that is what the mail radius and everything was based on.

MR. DAVIS: We had this hang up once before, I remember.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: So we are faced with a continuance to a date to be determined?

MR. JOHNSON: When is your January hearing date, I do not have the sheet in front
of me.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: January 21%,

MR. DAVIS: Thursday, January 21%.

MR. JOHNSON: Okay, we do not want to make this hard, we will come back on the
21% if staff — since they feel they need that time.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Ms. Speicher, is this feasible to have a continuance to the
January 21* board meeting?

MS. SPEICHER: I would ask for the Board to also state provided that we get the new
application and the new information by when?

MRS. VARNER: December the 10",
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MS. SPEICHER: December 10",

MR. JOHNSON: December 10"? We will get you a revised site plan by December
10",

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Okay —

MR. JOHNSON: Everything else will basically be the same, we are just changing the
site plan and we will get our engineers on it and get it to you as quickly as possible.
If we can get it before the 10™ we will certainly give you every bit of the time that
you need.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Okay, then the decision of the Board is that we are %ranting the
continuance contingent on you getting your request in by December 10" and being
present for a meeting January 21*'. Ms. Speicher is that adequate?

MS. SPEICHER: I am sorry Chair, I just — something just dawned on me. We are
currently reviewing the re-write — or review and update for the 2009 County Zoning
Ordinance. Just this past week, or last Friday, the Codes committee, based upon the
staff recommendation, is proposing a provision in the Zoning Ordinance that setbacks
for towers cannot be varied. I discussed this issue with them that we need to either
look at reducing our setbacks because every tower we get, requests a variance, and
the staff voted, and the Codes committee which is made up of members of the Joint
Planning Board voted to not allow a variance on the tower.

That is not in place right now, but we have it scheduled for the December 21%
Planning Board meeting which typically would be the January 19" County
Commissioner meeting. So [ want to make sure —

MR. JOHNSON: We are not varying the setback at this point, we are fixing it, so that
is consistent with what staff is coming forward with.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Essentially what they are doing is they are moving so they will
not have a requirement for a variance.

MS. SPEICHER: I just wanted that on record in case something comes up for a
variance.

MR. JOHNSON: The other part of that, and I think Mr. Raynor will concur, since we
have our application in, we are under the existing ordinance at the time of the
application; if we are continuing that application to make an adjustment to it.

MS. SPEICHER: This would be a new application, and a new submittal.

MR. JOHNSON: I would hope that we could just change the site plan and not do a
completely new application. So much of the documentation is the very same, it will
not change.
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MS. SPEICHER: The property is changing, apparently.

MR. JOHNSON: Just the site plan will change, we are not changing the property.
The parcel is the same, we are just shifting the site plan.

MS. SPEICHER: We advertised the .34 acres, not the 90 plus acres in Cumberland
County.

MR. JOHNSON: All we are going to do — we are just going to move it back enough
on the same parcel to meet the setback. Every — dimensions, everything else,
landscaping, everything will stay the same. The notice, you will be able to re-
advertise for the January meeting with a new description.

MS. SPEICHER: The mandatory State notice property owners would not change
because that is adjacent property owners. However, our County Commissioner’s
policy that more than adjacent property owners at a wider radius is notified, that
would change depending on the location of the property.

MR. JOHNSON: In this case that will not change, I do not think there will be any
others that will come within that radius. That will not change who gets the notice, it
is just the description of the site plan, that is all that is going to change is the property
description.

MS. SPEICHER: Okay, one more time, we advertised this .36 acre tract, the specific
tract that is shown on the site plan.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Do you understand what she is saying? The size does not
change, but that .3 whatever acres is a different .3 acres when you move it.

MR. JOHNSON: But it is on the same parent parcel and we will describe the — we
will have an easement for the fall zone. That is fine, we will do that, and we will
make it so that it reads that it is bigger than that but it will not — if you are keeping it
on the same parent parcel it should not change — there may be somebody down
Whitehorse Court or whatever it is that may have to get notice that did not originally,
that is okay, it will not be that many people. We will have the right description in the
advertisement. [ think the only real concern is that the right description and the
notices get mailed out to the right people. We can do both if it is in by December 10"
I don’t know why that would be a problem to get them properly notified and fully
notified in accordance with the Commissioner’s policy.

MS. SPEICHER: We certainly would for the January meeting, but to us it is a new
application because it is different property.

MR. JOHNSON: It is the same parcel, I do not know, it is not really different
property.

MS. SPEICHER: But we would get it done.
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MR. RAYNOR: What parcel number was on —

MS. SPEICHER: Portion of Pin 0403-02-9183.

MR. RAYNOR: Is that the parcel number for the whole —

MS. SPEICHER: Yes, sir. We advertised it at —

MR. RAYNOR: I understand that, but then it does not change — it is still a part of
that pin number, and they are going to re-advertise the change in the site within that
portion of that parcel, so it is not a —

MS. SPEICHER: It is, I agree, it is the same parcel, but it is different property so we
have to re-notify and re-advertise which is no big deal, and we certainly do not mind
doing it.

MR. JOHNSON: Do you have a copy of the notice, maybe that will help me
understand, maybe there is something I am missing here. Do you have a copy of
what was sent out?

MS. SPEICHER: Chair Quigley, do you want to see the notice before I show it to
him?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Go ahead, show him the notice.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Technically let it be known that we are in recess at this moment,
thank you, please.

MR. JOHNSON: Thank you.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Okay we are reconvened. The wording of the continuance will
be that this is continued subject to the refilling the appropriate paperwork and paying
the costs associated with the re-advertising.

MR. JOHNSON: We have no problem with that, that is fine, that is no problem. We
will go ahead and submit additional — the appropriate paperwork would be the new
revised site plan, and I understand.

MS. SPEICHER: I would still like one more time just to reiterate that if this comes in
by December 10" for the January 21* meeting.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Everything has to be in by the 10" of December to be advertised
by —

Cumberland County Board of Adjustment Minutes: 11-19-09 Page 29 of 34



MS. SPEICHER: And that the staff proposal, the Committee supported Amendment
to the Zoning Ordinance, there will not be an option on the table for submission for a
variance, if it is approved.

MR. JOHNSON: We are fine, we are withdrawing the variance application, we are
going to submit a site without any variance for the setback.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Are there any other questions? Thank you very much,
appreciate your effort here.

MR. JOHNSON: Appreciate it, thank you very much. We want to try to be
cooperative in every way we can to make it easier on everybody.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Thank you very much. We do have another case to present.

MR. JOHNSON: I am sorry, did you vote on that, or do you need to vote on that?

CHAIR QUIGLEY: It does not require a vote.

MR. JOHNSON: On the continuance?

MS. SPEICHER: It does not have to as long as it is date certain.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: I will accept a motion that the continuance be enacted, do I have
a second?

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Made the motion.

MR. DAVIS and Mr. DYKES: Seconded the motion.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: It has been properly moved and seconded, is there any
discussion? All in favor of approving the continuance, signify by saying I.

Quigley: ¥
Swanson: Y
Davis: Y
Tart: Y
Dykes: Y

CHAIR QUIGLEY: That is unanimous, thank you. Would you please present the
Watershed Case, 09-01?
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MR. BARNHILL: This case is as follows:

e  WS-09-01. CONSIDERATION FOR HIGH DENSITY DEVELOPMENT WATERSHED
APPROVAL FOR RIVER LANDING CENTER OFFICE PARK, IN A MXD/CUD
ZONING DISTRICT, FOR UP TO 70% IMPERVIOUS AREA; CONTAINING 16.00 +/-
ACRES; LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE SR 1611 (ANDREWS ROAD), WEST OF SR
1612 (FARMERS ROAD); SUBMITTED BY: DOUGLAS B. COOPER WITH
MOORMAN, KIZER & REITZEL; OWNED BY: RIVER LANDING CENTER, LLC.

MR. DAVIS: Is that Pine Forest High School, is that what that is?

MR. BARNHILL: Yes, Pine Forest. This is a vicinity map showing the property as
you can see here off Andrews Road. This also shows the zoning in the area, the site
highlighted there in blue. Hydric soils are not an issue on this site as you can see in
red, the site there. The green being the hydric soils, so that is not a factor in this case.
Here is an overview of the actual site of Andrews Road up at the top here, you have
your access roads coming in. The site consists of four office buildings, three stories
each.

The applicant has asked for up to 70% impervious, that is the maximum allowed
under the high density option. That 70% also includes this area here which would be
future development. You can not very well see it here, but you have the retention
pond designed to catch all the runoff from this site and contain it on site. You have
your Forebay area here. The Forebay area, and then your containment, that is the
pond that actually contains the water. Then you have a barrel riser at the lower left
hand corner for the overflow.

This diagram is just another example of a pond itself, the retention pond. You have
your Forebay area, and you have the berm here, gravel berm slows the water down
when you have your containment area, and your riser where the actual water will
eventually make its way out and an emergency spillway, like I said, it is just another
example of a wet retention pond.

If I may, I would like to read the approvals into the record:

1. The stormwater control system must meet the standards of the County Water
Supply Watershed Management and Protection Ordinance. (Plans have been
reviewed by the County Engineer’s office and were approved on November 12,
2009.)

2. Cost estimate for the stormwater system must be a sufficient amount to complete
the project. (County Engineer’s office verified the sufficiency of the amount
proposed in letter dated November 12, 2009.)
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3. The Operation and Maintenance Plan must be legally sufficient and comply with
the minimum standards of the County Water Supply Watershed Management and
Protective Ordinance. (The Operation and Maintenance Plan have been found to
be legally sufficient by the Interim County Attorney on November 12, 2009.)

4. The project must meet the standards of the zoning and subdivision ordinances.
(The Cumberland County Board of Commissioners approved this project as a
Conditional Use District and Permit rezoning case, subject to the contents of the
application, site plan and Ordinance Related Conditions, P09-06, on April 20,
2009.)

5. The Operation and Maintenance Plan must be satisfactory and comply with at
least the minimum standards and intent of the Ordinance. (The Watershed
Review Officer has reviewed and approved this plan on October 27, 2009.)

6. The project must have an approved soil erosion and sedimentation control plan.
(The North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources, Land
Resources Division has approved this plan on September 24, 2009.)

7. In addition to any other requirements provided by the County Water Supply
Watershed Management and Protection Ordinance, the Board may designate
additional conditions and requirements on the proposal to assure the use will be
harmonious with the area in which the project is to be located and with the spirit
of the ordinance.

That is just basically an overview of the site. If you have any questions, I would be
more than happy to try to answer them.

MR. DAVIS: There has been no opposition, no concerns?

MR. BARNHILL: It is not a public hearing.

MS. SPEICHER: Did you understand that, Mr. Davis? A high density watershed is
not a public hearing so we do not post the property or mail notices or advertise it.

MR. DAVIS: Right.

MR. RAYNOR: But did you understand his question? There has not been any
concern or opposition, has there?

MR. BARNHILL: None has been brought to my attention.

MR. RAYNOR: Because sometimes you do not need to mail notices or do an
advertisement to hear that there are concerns and —

MR. BARNHILL: Nothing that has been brought to my attention.
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MR. RAYNOR: Particularly with the school right there. They obviously know what
is going on, the principal, and the teachers.

MR. BARNHILL: I would think with the rezoning there was a lot of opposition.

MS. TART: My understanding is once it was rezoned this is just basically a
formality, is not it?

MR. BARNHILL: This is the approval of the stormwater system on the site.

MR. DAVIS: I guess my question is how would we suppose without any technical
knowledge to be able to look at this and see where the problems are. If you are
recommending approval, that is good enough for me.

MS. SPEICHER: What Jeff read off are the state mandated requirements for high
density watershed approval and was trying to get — or did get into the record that we
in fact do have each and all approvals from the appropriate party, and that’s what this
Board is responsible to find that —

MR. DAVIS: Make sure they are all there.

MS. SPEICHER: That we did it.

MR. DAVIS: Right, good job.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: Do I have a motion?

MR. DAVIS: I make a motion that we approve it.

VICE-CHAIR SWANSON: Second.

CHAIR QUIGLEY: It has been properly moved and seconded, is there any other
discussion on the high density watershed approval? Hearing none, all in favor signify
by saying L.

Quigley:
Swanson:
Davis:
Tart:

Dykes:

CHAIR QUIGLEY: That is unanimous, thank you.

g
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8.  DISCUSSION

MS. SPEICHER: [ was going to make you aware of the draft ordinance. Marili did
email it, included you with our board members on the email, so feel free to call, I will
read through it if you have any questions, we will do our best.

9. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:54 p.m.
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

BEVERLY EAVES PERDUE EUGENE A. CONTI, JR.
GOVERNOR SECRETARY

"November 6, 2009

H. D. Bowen, Jr.
Post Office Box 1007
Hope Mills, NC 28348

Dear Mr. Bowen:

SUBJECT: Variance To Corridor Map For Fayetteville Outer Loop; Cumberland County,
TIP Project U-2519

We have reviewed the request for a variance for the parcel identified as PIN 0403-12-0077 located at
1511 Lake Upchurch Road. The Department of Transportation grants a variance which allows a
telecommunications tower to be placed outside of the proposed right of way, subject to the following
conditions:

1. This variance is granted based on the request and site plan received on November 5, 2009 that
was submitted by Nexsen Pruet, PLLC on your behalf. Any amendments to this request would
annul this variance and would require another variance approval. Any further request to amend
this property will be considered on an individual basis and will be subject to the constraints of the
Transportation Corridor Official Map laws.

2. All applicable local permits or regulations are to be complied with.

The Department has granted this variance according to General Statute 136-44.52. After reviewing this
particular situation, the Department has decided that the property amendment does not interfere with the
development of the project, and will not hamper the Department’s ability to acquire the needed right-of-
way in the future.

If you have any questions, or need any more information, you may contact Mr. Ray Mcintyre at (919) 733-
2039.

Sincerely,

Ry Mol

fm Calvin W. Leggett, P.E.
Manager, Program Development Branch

CWL/rm

cc: Greg Burns, P.E., Acting Division Engineer
Gary Burton, Assistant District Engineer
Judy Joines, Right-of-Way Branch
Jay Bennett, P.E., State Roadway Design Engineer
Rick Heicksen, Fayetteville MPO
Thomas H. Johnson, Jr. Nexsen Pruet, PLLC



Exhibhit #3

-

@.gé DaVinci ﬁngine&n’ng, Inc.
:'ff.e PO Box 66
t "g Unionville Center, OH 43077

October 7, 2009

American Tower Corporation
1898 Leland Drive, Suite A
Marietta, GA 30067

Attn:  William Henry 111

Re: 220-ft Monopole
Located in Cumberland Co., NC: Site #273126 — Lake Upchurch NC
DaVinci Job #09235-1643 / TAPP #TP-8399

Dear Mr. Henry:

We understand that there may be some concern on the part of local building officials regarding the potential for
failure of the proposed communication monopole. Communication structures are designed in accordance with
the Telecommunications Industry Association ANSI/TIA-222-G, "Structural Standards for Steel Antenna Towers
and Antenna Supporting Structures”. This is a nationally recognized standard developed by professional
engineers experienced in the design of communication structures.

We have designed this monopole to withstand a basic wind speed of 80 mph as recommended by ANSIU/TIA-
222-F for Cumberland County. This basic wind speed is not a peak gust speed but is the "fastest mile" wind
speed. That means it is an average speed based upon the time it takes the fastest wind to travel one mile. The
TIA/EIA also includes a gust factor of 1.69 in the wind pressure calculations. The wind speed is measured at 33
feet above grade with escalation factors that increase the wind pressure with the height of the pole. The wind
speed is a design wind speed, which means that the pole will safely withstand the full design wind speed and still
maintain an additional load capacity know as a "Safety Factor".

This monopole has been intentionally designed to accommodate a theoretical fall radius. The upper 79 of the
pole has been designed to meet the wind loads of the design, however, the lower portion of the pole has been
designed to resist substantially more loading. In the unlikely event that this monopole would fall due to extreme
wind load, (in excess of the design wind load), it would yield at the 141° elevation, resulting in a maximum 78’
fall radius.

The pole has been properly designed by a qualified engineer with all of the applicable safety factors incorporated
as required by the code. Communication poles are safe structures with a long history of reliable operation.

We hope this review of the monopole design has given you a greater degree of comfort regarding the design
capacity inherent in pole structures. If you have any additional questions please call me at 614-937-4922.

Sincerely,
“‘unuu,"’

\
DAVINCI ENGINEERING, INC. ~oat¥ CARG ™,

Michael F. Plahovinsak, P.E.
mike.p@davinci-engineering.com

“Tu min, Creativity into
www.davinci-engineering.com
PO Box 1966 PO Box 66, 110 W. Main St.
Santa Maria, CA 93456 Unionville Center, OH 43077

(805)922-5221 (614)937-4922
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IMPACT STATEMENT

M

AMERICAN TOWER"

SITE # 141-184

“LAKE UPCHURCH”

TO BE LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF
LAKE UPCHURCH ROAD/SRI1116
WEST OF BLACK BRIDGE ROAD/SRI1115

H.D. BOWEN, JR. PROPERTY

As per submitted plans

PREPARED BY:
GRAHAM HERRING COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE
GRAHAM HERRING GRI
8052 GREY OAK DRIVE, RALEIGH, NORTH CAROLINA 27615




IMPACT STATEMENT

This report addresses whether the proposed use is in compliance with the purpose and
intent of the plan of development of Cumberland County, NC, Land Use and Zoning
Ordinance, including §927 thereof, and is a compatible use in the area where it is to be
located. In preparing this report, I inspected the site and surrounding areas in the district
and reviewed the site plans for the facility provided by BC Architects Engineers PLC and
Star Survey Inc., Registered North Carolina Land Surveyor, for American Tower’s,
application for a Special Use Permit under the Cumberland County Zoning Ordinance,
§927. I have also consulted and reviewed with area local appraisers, developers, tax
authorities and reviewed the public records in similar recent zoning cases in various

jurisdictions in Cumberland County.

PROPOSED FACILITY

The proposed facility will consist of a Two Hundred Twenty Foot (220.0%), monopole
tower. The site will be comprised of a developed area as described in the site and
engineering plans that were submitted. The fencing surrounding the site will be a chain
link fence at least ten (10.0°) feet in height, around the seventy by seventy (70° x 70”) foot
compound, located in the developed area as described in the plans that were submitted.
There will be a four (4) inch thick gravel weed barrier inside the fenced area and
extending one (1) inch outside the fenced area. Landscaping will meet or exceed the
County Ordinance requirements for this project. The area is zoned RR. The parent tract
is shown in the County Records as in Tax Parcel: 0403-02-9183, 63.64 acres; DB 5170,
Pg. 287.The lease area to be developed will be some 0.359+- acres in size, and is

comprised of 15,625 +- sq. ft. as per the plans that were submitted.

Graham B. Herring Real Estate



Impact Statement
October 8, 2009
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BACKGROUND

In general we have found that the factors that primarily affect property values are use,
zoning, topography, and market demand. As the factors change, so do the current market

value and development potential of any parcel of real estate.

While the value of a parcel of real property may be affected by the use of adjoining or
surrounding property, that use must be significant in its intrusiveness or lack of
compatibility in order to override the primary factors that affect property values. Uses
which generate significant traffic, noise, odor, or dangerous conditions are generally the
types of uses which are so intrusive as to override the normal factors affecting property
values, and result in a material adverse impact on surrounding properties. For example,
hog farms, rock quarries, paper mills, manufacturing plants, adult entertainment
establishments, and similar uses, are generally believed to have a negative impact on the
value of surrounding properties. In addition, development of property in a manner, which
is significantly incompatible with existing or planned use of surrounding property, can

result in a negative impact on property immediately adjacent to the incompatible use.

Our examination of the effects of the existing transmission tower and broadcast tower
sites on surrounding properties, and our examination of other studies on this subject and
available data, indicates that, in general, these type towers are not the type of use, which
is so intrusive as to have an inherently negative impact on surrounding properties so long
as the set backs are sufficient as to not cause an adjoining property to not be able to be

used or developed for its highest and best use under the jurisdictions zoning restrictions.
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SUMMARY

My personal inspection of the site and surrounding areas, and public records revealed the
following:

1. Located immediately to the west of the proposed site and parent tract are single
family residential uses separated from the parent tract by mature trees and
vegetation, rural agrarian and uncultivated land uses and mobile and modular
homes.

2. Located immediately to the north of the proposed site are rural residential uses,
single family homes, and a large subdivision, separated by NCRR 1116/Lake
Upchurch Road.

3. Located to the east of the proposed site towards State Road 1115/Black Bridge
Road is undeveloped and cultivated farmland, and treed land.

4. Located south of the proposed site are farmlands undeveloped wooded areas and
single family rural agrarian uses.

5. Located to the southeast of the proposed facility are single family homes, and
undeveloped land and also a large manufacturing facility, electrical substation and
high power electrical transmission lines.

6. That the visibility of the facility will be very limited on the eastbound approach,
at ground level due to the existing vegetation, and separation from the existing
development, also the areas outside fenced compound will be left undisturbed in
order to maintain the existing wooded areas near the site.

In summary, my personal inspection of this proposed site and other tower locations in
North Carolina, in the counties of Cumberland, Robeson, Johnston, Wilson, Hoke,
Moore, Sampson, and many others, my personal Expert Witness Testimony in over
1,700 one thousand seven hundred zoning hearings for the record in these and many other
jurisdictions across the southeast, my review of industry data regarding all types of
wireless transmission towers, indicates that, in general, wireless telecommunication
tower facilities do not have a inherently deleterious affect on surrounding properties. Our
review of the Facility to be constructed at the Site, and personal inspection of the Site and
surrounding area, indicate that the planned facility is generally compatible with the area’s

existing and proposed uses, and developed as proposed it will have no substantial
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Impact Statement
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existing and proposed uses, and developed as proposed it will have no substantial
negative impact on existing or currently planned development of the surrounding

properties.

Moreover, and as required by §927.M of the Cumberland County Zoning Code, this
Telecommunications Facility, built as planned, will have no detrimental or injurious
effect on the property values of the surrounding neighborhood or other properties in the
general vicinity. Finally, the nature of this location, with its separation from the
residential arterials located to the north of the proposed site, the rural character, farming
and mixed uses nearby, heavily wooded areas, is such that the proposed development will
not create any negative aesthetic effects on scenic roadways or other unique natural

features.

DISCLAIMER

This document is not to be construed as an appraisal of real property; developed or undeveloped. It is an
assessment of empirical data and written expression of opinion of impact of this particular planned project,
based on the experience of the author of this document. This document is not to be reproduced in whole or
in part, disseminated to the public, nor is it to be used for any purpose other than the reason intended. No
opinions of value or opinions of the correctness or accuracy of the engineering designs or plans submitted
for this project are expressed, implied or intended by the author.

Graham B. Herring, GRI
NC Brokers License #30791
SC Brokers License #1355
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Cumberland County Community GIS
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OVERVIEW OF THE CREDENTIALS OF GRAHAM HERRING, LICENSED
NORTH CAROLINA AND SOUTH CAROLINA REAL ESTATE BROKER, AND
GRADUATE OF THE UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA REALTORS
INSTITUTE.

GRAHAM B. HERRING, GRI
8052 Grey Oak Drive
Raleigh, North Carolina

Experience:

Licensed Real Estate Broker in North Carolina for 38 years
Licensed South Carolina Real Estate Broker

Mortgage Lending and Appraising, 6 Years (Single Family Residential)

Land Development (Commercial and Residential)

Shopping Center development, leasing and sales

Industrial, Office and Institutional, Commercial properties; development, leasing and
sales.

Specialized Computer enhanced photography (Photo Simulations)

Site Acquisition, Telecommunications, Radio, Television, and EMS/911 Facilities
SHPO North and South Carolina/ remediation work

Residential/Builder Construction lending

Certificate of Completion, United States Savings and Loan League Single Family
Residential Appraising Course.

Past Executive Director of the Nash County, and Rocky Mount Homebuilders
Association

Graduate of the North Carolina Homebuilders Institute

Graduate of the North Carolina Insurance Institute

Graduate of the International Shopping Center Institute School of Management and
Leasing

Graduate of the University of Pennsylvania/Wharton School Of Investment Real Estate
Consulted with City Municipalities and County Governments. Concerning Potential
Impact of Telecommunications Facilities, in planning and study meetings.

Appeared as an expert witness in over 1700 Zoning Hearings, in 67 counties, and 65

jurisdictions in North Carolina, Virginia, Georgia, Florida and South Carolina
Consulted with developers concerning planning and placement of telecommunications
facilities in planned developments, i.e.: Weston, and Wakefield.

Testified as an expert witness regarding impact on surrounding properties of
Telecommunications Facilities in Board of Adjustment and Commissioners hearings

throughout North Carolina, Virginia, Georgia, Florida and South Carolina.

Conducted Market and Tracking Studies in several counties including Wake and Orange

counties, on the development of telecommunications facilities, and the sale of improved

residential properties in developments that are surrounding such facilities, and
comparison studies of such.
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